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          1  LANDMARKS, SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Good morning,

          3  ladies and gentlemen. We'll be dealing with LU No.

          4  399, Queens, Community Board 11, 20055133 HKQ,

          5  designation. List No. 358, LP 2155 by the Landmarks

          6  Preservation Commission, pursuant to Section 3020 of

          7  the New York City Charter, Douglaston Historic

          8  District, generally located between 40th Avenue to

          9  the north, 233rd and 244th Streets, to the east

         10  Northern Boulevard, to the south of Douglaston

         11  Parkway and 240th Street to the west.

         12                 LU No. 443. Queens, Community Board

         13  1. 20055457 SEQ. Application submitted by the New

         14  York City School Construction Authority, pursuant to

         15  Section 31 on the New York State Public Authorities

         16  Law for the proposed site selection of property

         17  located 35-12 35th Street, to construct a 1,000-seat

         18  high school facility to house the Frank Sinatra

         19  School of the Arts, and that's on block 639, lot 16.

         20                 We will call up Diane Jackier from

         21  the Landmarks Preservation Commission.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Mr. Chairman,

         23  because I have another Committee that is a conflict,

         24  I wonder if we could open the roll and I could

         25  record my vote?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: It would be my

          3  pleasure.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: And with just

          5  a very brief comment, if I may.

          6                 Do you want to call my name, or --

          7                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Koppell.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Yes. I ask to

          9  be excused from voting for a moment to explain my

         10  vote.

         11                 One person who has a house within the

         12  district, which I fully support, claims that it

         13  doesn't fall within the definition because of date.

         14                 I don't wish to make any

         15  determination on that person, I believe he's going

         16  to testify, but I would just ask that the Landmark

         17  Commission and the Councilperson who represents him

         18  look at his claims carefully.

         19                 That being said, I withdraw my

         20  request and vote aye on all on the calendar. And

         21  thank you, Mr. Chairman, for your courtesy.

         22                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: The vote is one

         23  in favor, and remains open.

         24                 MS. JACKIER: Good morning, Council

         25  members. My name is Diane Jackier, the Director of
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          2  Community and Government Affairs.

          3                 I am here today to testify on the

          4  Commission's designation on the Douglaston Hill

          5  Historic District in Queens.

          6                 On August 3rd, 2004, the Landmarks

          7  Commission held a public hearing on the proposed

          8  designation of the district. Nineteen people spoke

          9  in favor of designation, including Council Member

         10  Tony Avella, the Queensborough Historian and

         11  representatives of State Assemblymember Ann Margaret

         12  Carrozza, Community Board 11 in Queens, the

         13  Douglaston-Little Neck Historical Society, the

         14  Douglaston Civic Association, the Queens County Farm

         15  Museum and the Historic Districts Council.

         16                 In addition, State Senator Frank

         17  Padavan, the Society for the Preservation of Long

         18  Island Antiquities, and several others submitted

         19  letters to the Commission in support of designation.

         20  On December 14th, 2004, the Commission designated

         21  the Douglaston Hill Historic District.

         22                 Located in northeastern Queens, near

         23  the border with Nassau County, the Douglaston Hill

         24  Historic District is significant for its principles

         25  of mid-nineteenth and early twentieth-century
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          2  community planning and development, and as an

          3  example of an early twentieth century suburb.

          4                 The district consists of 31

          5  single-family homes that are fine examples of many

          6  late 19th and early 20th century architectural

          7  styles, including Queen Anne, Colonial Revival,

          8  Shingle, Arts and Crafts and Tudor Revival.

          9                 In its park-like setting,

         10  architectural expression and social history, the

         11  Douglaston Hill district is representative of the

         12  evolution of the commuter suburb, and is a precursor

         13  to the speculative suburban development which remade

         14  Queens in the twentieth century.

         15                 This transformation of Queens from

         16  colonial villages, estates and small farms to

         17  commuter suburbs is typical of American settlement

         18  patterns in many parts of the country. The dramatic

         19  change that this pattern growth brought about - and

         20  the parallel development of a quintessential

         21  American lifestyle - was due to several factors.

         22  Rapid advances in transportation, particularly the

         23  steam railroad in the first half of the nineteenth

         24  century, made long distance commuting possible. New

         25  levels of personal wealth following the Civil War,
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          2  gave rise to a middle class that embraced virtues of

          3  domesticity, home ownership and life in a suburban

          4  setting. These values were made manifest in the

          5  commuter suburb, a distinct form of community which

          6  places the single-family house in a non-urban

          7  setting, convenient to the city by rail.

          8                 In the Douglaston Hill Historic

          9  District, New York's history of community planning

         10  and development, from the 1850s to the 1920s can be

         11  read in the district's topography, layout and

         12  architecture.

         13                 Most of the houses in the district

         14  combine the stylistic elements drawn from popular

         15  architectural styles from the 1890s to the 1920s,

         16  which contribute to the district's visual coherence.

         17                 The Commission urges you to affirm

         18  the designation of the Douglaston Hill Historic

         19  District.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Do any of my

         21  colleagues have any questions?

         22                 Councilman Barron.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Thank you very

         24  much, Mr. Chair. As I ask everybody that comes

         25  before us, when it comes to something in the 1850s
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          2  and '90s, has there been any documentation

          3  connecting it to these slaves, slavery in New York

          4  City?

          5                 MS. JACKIER: With all of our reports

          6  we would include any information that would indicate

          7  such. There is nothing in this report, but if there

          8  was we would have included it.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: All right. I

         10  just always check.

         11                 Thank you very much.

         12                 MS. JACKIER: You're welcome.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Mr. Chair, I

         14  just wanted to note, and actually thank Council

         15  Member Avella for his, you know, desire to meet with

         16  a particular family that reached out last week that

         17  was trying to find out what their technical issues

         18  were with their property.

         19                 The issues regarding landmarking and

         20  the effect on individuals is always a unique set of

         21  circumstances. I think that, you know, Councilman

         22  Avella has been responsive to the community and has

         23  been working hard to try and get this package

         24  together. I have an overall respect for his ability

         25  and desire to protect communities, and as a result I
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          2  have a Adeslay Park (phonetic) in my district, that

          3  wants to look at becoming landmarked as well, from

          4  all of the local feedback that has happened from the

          5  Bayside rezoning in the local papers and the

          6  Douglaston Hill District.

          7                 So, I really just wanted to thank him

          8  for bringing this up, thank him for being

          9  accessible, and, you know, hope that all of the

         10  technical details can still be worked out.

         11                 You know, I still have some issues

         12  where landmarking overall is the cost of, and the

         13  flexibility of Landmarks Preservation Commission.

         14  But that's a hearing for another day.

         15                 I'm working in Campaign Finance

         16  trying to make sure that Campaign Finance Board

         17  doesn't lose its mind. So, I'd like to --  they're

         18  actually doing some other onerous things as well to

         19  members, and actually to people that even want to

         20  apply. But anyhow, you know, I think that, again I

         21  want to thank Councilman Avella for his due

         22  diligence, and always the Chair for being a

         23  wonderful, marvelous, due diligent person, as he

         24  always is.

         25                 That's it.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Besides loving

          3  us, do you have any questions for Diane Jackier?

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I honestly

          5  didn't hear which project she was speaking on. Was

          6  it the Douglaston Hill project?

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: The Douglaston,

          8  yes.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay. No, I

         10  don't have any questions for Diane.

         11                 I would, at some point I think we

         12  need to have a hearing with the Landmarks people

         13  directly regarding how they deal with administrative

         14  changes and requests. I think that's a hearing that

         15  the Committee should have.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: We are.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay. Thank

         18  you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: As a result of

         20  your request.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Thank you, Mr.

         22  Chair.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: We took care of

         24  that immediately.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I'd like to
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          2  vote aye so I could go back to Campaign Finance.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Oh, that's what

          4  that was all about.

          5                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Comrie.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Aye. Thank you

          7  very much.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Do any of my

          9  colleagues have any other questions?

         10                 Just one minute. I just want to make

         11  sure I introduce Councilwoman Annabel Palma.

         12  Councilman Barron you heard from, Councilman Avella,

         13  Councilman Felder, and Council Member Oddo, the

         14  Minority Leader.

         15                 All right, Councilman Avella, do you

         16  have any questions for Diane Jackier?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: First of all,

         18  I thank you, Mr. Chair, for holding this hearing.

         19                 This is the culmination of a 14-year

         20  battle that the community has waged to get the

         21  Douglaston Hill section landmarked.

         22                 As Council Member Comrie alluded to,

         23  an issue came up to my attention and to his

         24  attention at the end of last week. The Mosley

         25  family, who I believe will be testifying in a few
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          2  moments, will have some concerns, and I met with

          3  them. And I would just like to ask Landmarks,

          4  because after I met with them, I met with the

          5  community, Douglaston Little Neck Historical

          6  Society, I also had a number of conversations with

          7  Landmarks, and just to go onto the record, if we

          8  were able to take one option and to take this

          9  particular house out of the proposal, I believe it

         10  is your opinion, the Landmarks opinion, that that

         11  would in effect jeopardize the stability and the

         12  structural integrity of the entire proposal, because

         13  there are houses to the north of that that then

         14  would be eliminated from the proposal as well; is

         15  that correct?

         16                 MS. JACKIER: Yes, that is correct.

         17  There are two other houses on Depugh Avenue.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: If you want to

         19  take this house out, it would really damage the

         20  entire proposal. It's unfortunate, but I have to

         21  support the proposal in its entirety. However, I

         22  think what we can do, and I know Landmarks is always

         23  willing to do this, is to meet with the family to

         24  make sure that whatever changes they want to do to

         25  the site can be accommodated to some extent in
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          2  conjunction with discussions with the community who

          3  proposed this.

          4                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you, Diane

          6  Jackier.

          7                 Okay, we're going to have a panel.

          8  Four people on this panel. I'd like to ask if we

          9  could get another chair at the table, please.

         10                 Simeon Bankoff, from the Historic

         11  District Council; Stewart, I think it says Hersh; is

         12  that right?

         13                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Yes, it looks

         14  like Hersh.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: From the

         16  Douglaston Little Neck Historical Society.

         17                 William Sievers; is that correct?

         18                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Yes, Sievers.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: From the

         20  Douglaston Historic District.

         21                 And Julia Schoeck, from the

         22  Douglaston Little Neck Historical Society. Come up,

         23  please.

         24                 Councilman Barron, I understand you

         25  have an urgent meeting to go to?
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Yes.

          3                 I'd just like to register my voice

          4  and also say that, you know, I'm glad it's the

          5  culmination of a 14-year battle, but I'm also very

          6  concerned about homes that might be affected by

          7  landmarking,'cause it could happen to any one of our

          8  homes, and it can happen to anybody's district. So,

          9  whatever work can be done to alleviate the concerns

         10  of the family, I hope we don't just overwhelm them

         11  with the vote, 'cause it's probably going to pass

         12  today, and celebrate. But we'd be very concerned

         13  about this family and make sure that whatever

         14  changes that need to be made, I hope they can happen

         15  and we can accommodate that.

         16                 And with that I'd like to register my

         17  vote.

         18                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         19  Barron.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: I vote aye.

         21                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: The vote

         22  remains open.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Okay, whoever

         24  wants to start, you can decide.

         25                 MR. BANKOFF: Good morning, Council

                                                            15

          1  LANDMARKS, SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2  members. My name is Simeon Bankoff, Executive

          3  Director of the Historic Districts Council.

          4                 I would like to thank the Council for

          5  this opportunity to speak before them, and I'd like

          6  to thank the Council for all its good work about

          7  preservation in New York.

          8                 I'd also like to let the Council

          9  members know, as they probably do, that tomorrow is

         10  the 40th anniversary of the New York City landmarks

         11  law, so this is very serendipitous that we're

         12  talking about the Douglaston Hill designation,

         13  because when it was proposed, it was the 25th

         14  anniversary of the landmarks law. So, here we are 14

         15  years later.

         16                 The Historic Districts Council is in

         17  very strong support of the current Douglaston Hill

         18  Historic District proposal.

         19                 In fact, the Council members may not

         20  be aware that this is a proposal that has been

         21  looked over very carefully by both the community and

         22  its representatives, and in fact, this is the

         23  smallest proposal that happened. There were a number

         24  of different proposals that were twice the size of

         25  this. So, every, each one of these houses was very
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          2  carefully chosen. I'm sorry that Councilman Barron

          3  -- oh, wait, he hasn't left the room yet, and there

          4  was in fact at one point in one of the proposals, a

          5  number of African-American oysterman shacks that

          6  were freed African Americans from the 19th century

          7  that had been part of the proposal, but those were

          8  unfortunately cut out.

          9                 So, this proposal before you now was

         10  very carefully thought of, very, sort of finely

         11  drawn, and has the full support of both the

         12  community and the administration. I urge you to

         13  support it.

         14                 Thank you.

         15                 You see? You should have been paying

         16  attention.

         17                 (Council Member Barron not using the

         18  microphone.)

         19                 MR. BANKOFF: No. There were a number

         20  of oysterman shacks that had been owned and lived in

         21  by black oystermen. In the 19th century oystermen.

         22  They were freed.

         23                 It's owned by private individuals,

         24  I'm not aware of their ethnicities.

         25                 MS. SCHOECK: Good morning. I'm Julia
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          2  Schoeck. I'm President of the Douglaston Little Neck

          3  Historical Society. And I just have a brief

          4  statement to make and it says: At last we see the

          5  final parts of a process that will create the

          6  Douglaston Hill Historic District. Although the

          7  district plan we see today is dismayingly small,

          8  compared to what we proposed 15 years ago, it is

          9  important as it reaches towards the Udalls Cove

         10  preservation area to the east and acts as a buffer

         11  for the Douglaston District designated 1997.

         12                 Dating to 1853, the hill has deep

         13  lots and extensive frontages that afford a glimpse

         14  into revealed rural aspects. It provides the early

         15  background for Douglaston, including churches,

         16  farmhouses, barns, oyster harvesting and early fire

         17  and hose companies. The future of the hill is

         18  challenging in that development must work within a

         19  framework that avoids destruction of its character.

         20                 We are proud of Douglaston Hill and

         21  we thank the Landmarks Preservation Commission, the

         22  staff, the Commissioners and others, as well as our

         23  friends in the political arena who help toward work

         24  with historic district designation.

         25                 Thank you.
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          2                 MR. HERSH: Good morning, Council and

          3  Subcommittee members, I have a prepared statement

          4  that I would like to make but preceding it, I would

          5  just like to commend to your attention and the

          6  attention of any interested parties a column in the

          7  New York Times of just this past Saturday April 16th

          8  by Dan Berry that speaks so eloquently to this whole

          9  subject, and if there's anybody here who has not

         10  seen this article, I really would think that they

         11  would profit by reading it.

         12                 As to my own comments, as I said, my

         13  name is Stewart Hersh, and I'm a Douglaston resident

         14  of 38 years standing. I was a very young man when I

         15  first came to Douglaston and I've seen many changes

         16  since then, most of them positive, but not all.

         17                 I'm also a member of the Douglaston

         18  Hill Landmarks Designation Committee, a trustee of

         19  the Douglaston Little Neck Historical Society and

         20  member of the Douglaston Civic Association.

         21                 Additionally, I am an interested

         22  attendee at the meetings of Community Board 11.

         23                 That Board at its meeting way back on

         24  November 4th, 2002, voted unanimously in favor of

         25  the designation of Douglaston Hill as a landmarked
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          2  historic district.

          3                 What differentiates me from most of

          4  those you will hear from, is that while my residence

          5  is in Douglaston, I do not live in the proposed

          6  Douglaston Hill Historic District, nor do I live in

          7  the already established Douglas Manor Historic

          8  District.

          9                 While designation has been shown to

         10  enhance property values in our historic district, my

         11  own home will not enjoy this benefit.

         12                 By no stretch of the imagination can

         13  there be any suspicion of self interest or practical

         14  self-serving by my efforts in this manner. And yet,

         15  I have been working for more than 15 years towards

         16  the designation first of Douglas Manor and now

         17  Douglaston Hill.

         18                 In fact, my interest predates even

         19  those early local efforts. I am a retired film

         20  maker, and many of my films were devoted to historic

         21  preservation.

         22                 Included in my work was a documentary

         23  entitled "Beautiful Downtown Newark."

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Excuse me. Are

         25  you almost done?
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          2                 MR. HERSH: Is my time up?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Well, it is. And

          4  I'm sorry I didn't mention it earlier. The course I

          5  didn't tell you, you have two minutes to speak.

          6                 MR. HERSH: Oh, I wasn't aware.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: So we --

          8                 MR. HERSH: I used much of it in

          9  talking about --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: So we will

         11  eliminate that portion of your testimony. You can

         12  finish your comments.

         13                 MR. HERSH: Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: You're welcome.

         15                 MR. HERSH: Where was I?

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: It is worth

         17  noting that all testimony at all hearings, including

         18  that heard by the civic association, community board

         19  11, the Landmarks Preservation Commission and the

         20  City Planning Commission have been in favor of the

         21  landmarking of Douglaston Hill.

         22                 In fact, as recently as April 13th,

         23  just this past Wednesday night, Mayor Bloomberg and

         24  Commissioner Tierney appeared before a joint meeting

         25  of the Civic Association of Douglaston and Little
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          2  Neck, where they both spoke favorably of the

          3  designation of Douglaston Hill.

          4                 Accordingly, there can be no reason

          5  to delay this approval any longer, risking the

          6  continued threat of yet more overdevelopment in this

          7  area.

          8                 I implore you as fervently as I can

          9  to improve this application with the greatest

         10  urgency. We, you and I, share an important and

         11  meaningful piece of intelligence with every

         12  interested party here.

         13                 Once historic architectural

         14  significance is gone, it's gone forever. We will

         15  never get it back.

         16                 Thank you for affording me the

         17  opportunity to be heard on this most important

         18  matter.

         19                 MR. SIEVERS: Councilman Felder,

         20  members of the Subcommittee, good morning.

         21                 My name is William Sievers, and I've

         22  resided in Douglaston Hill for 43 years. I live in a

         23  home that is 103 years old. Residents who support

         24  our effort are behind me.

         25                 We are earnestly imploring that we
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          2  get a rather rapid decision.

          3                 Ladies and gentlemen, members of the

          4  Douglaston Historic Society fervently hope that this

          5  hearing this morning will be part of the culmination

          6  of a 14-year quest.

          7                 The announcement in the City Record

          8  of July 16th, 2004 calling for a public hearing

          9  caused great elation in Douglaston Hill.

         10                 On August the 3rd, they had the

         11  opportunity to demonstrate their support for the

         12  historic district. The Queens Chronicle reported

         13  that in all, 19 Hill residents and other supporters

         14  testified on behalf of landmarking of 31 wood-frame

         15  homes, mostly built between 1890 and 1930. The

         16  Douglaston community fervently strove for the

         17  results.

         18                 It is a community that celebrated

         19  recently its Susque Centennial. It is a community

         20  that wrote hundreds of letters in support of their

         21  efforts, a community with residents whose ancestors

         22  have lived in the area since the 1800s, a community

         23  that stood on the sidewalk of its January

         24  snow-covered streets in order to be heard, a

         25  community that has many elderly residents whose
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          2  cherished the sense of place that gives them a

          3  feeling of security.

          4                 Members of this Committee, we believe

          5  the merit has been well established by means of

          6  competent and professional testimonials. We

          7  therefore urge you to designate Douglaston Hill the

          8  sixth historic district in the Borough of Queens.

          9  Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Do any of my

         11  colleagues have any questions?

         12                 Thank you very much.

         13                 I'd like to ask Diana Mosley to come

         14  up, please, and Mr. Kevin Mosley to come up, please.

         15                 You have two minutes and your wife

         16  has two minutes. Unless you want to give her your

         17  two minutes, will give her four minutes. I didn't

         18  think that would be the case. Right.

         19                 MR. MOSLEY: Distinguished Council

         20  members and Committee members, thank you for giving

         21  us the opportunity to speak today.

         22                 My name is Kevin Mosley, my wife

         23  Diana is sitting next to me, and we're here to

         24  request that the City Council exercise its statutory

         25  authority to modify the Douglaston Hill Historic
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          2  District, exclude our house, 41-45 240th Street.

          3                 Preliminarily, I have lived in

          4  Douglaston Bayside virtually my whole life, and the

          5  overdevelopment is of concern to me, myself.

          6  However, what we intend to do at the house is to

          7  carry through the plans we've already submitted,

          8  which is a somewhat minor addition, but let me talk

          9  about our particular house.

         10                 We only purchased it in late October.

         11  Apparently this process has been going on for a long

         12  time. We never received any notice whatsoever of any

         13  of these hearings. We didn't own the house in August

         14  2004, and while the community does seem to have been

         15  to support of the designation the Hill, the facts

         16  surrounding 41 45 were not part of the public

         17  record, and I'll say why.

         18                 The reason is that when we obtained

         19  ownership, we came into possession of the survey

         20  from 1919, an original survey which I have a copy,

         21  that shows that the structure that the LPC intended

         22  to designate was no longer there after 1919.

         23                 Now as the Committee knows, the basis

         24  for the designation of a historic district by

         25  statute is the designation report. And the
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          2  designation report specifically speaks to 41-45

          3  240th Street.

          4                 Is that two minutes? Okay.

          5                 The designation report says the house

          6  at 41-45 240th Street appears to date to 1867, and

          7  they rely upon a Beers Atlas from 1873 to say that

          8  the structure that's on the lot now is the same. We

          9  have proof positive that shows that's not correct.

         10  And the significance of the LPC's designation based

         11  on the history is apparent, because before we knew

         12  of the era, we had actually started to go through

         13  the process --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: I think you're

         15  going to have to conclude your comments.

         16                 MR. MOSLEY: I'm going to --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Oh, you're taking

         18  her two minutes?

         19                 MR. MOSLEY: Yes, I'm taking her --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: No problem.

         21                 MR. MOSLEY: Okay?

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: I will allow

         23  that.

         24                 Unless your wife will not.

         25                 MR. MOSLEY: Okay.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Okay.

          3                 MR. MOSLEY: We were denied our

          4  initial application because of the existing window

          5  patterns, also the LPC, dated from the original

          6  mid-19th century house.

          7                 And, again, that's absolutely

          8  incorrect, and I think the proof is an original

          9  server that shows the house was gone.

         10                 So, we must request that the Council

         11  look at this manner, and as the LPC themselves said,

         12  they did a finely-tuned analysis of each house. The

         13  public policy concerning a historic district, this

         14  district, would not be adversely affected, by

         15  excluding our house. Our house is towards the very

         16  end of the district, it's located on a dead-end

         17  street, it's not in the center of the district, the

         18  district is in the meandering district. Had the LPC

         19  known of the facts, I submit that they probably

         20  would not have included it. The majority of the

         21  houses northeast of us on the pugh are not included

         22  in the district except for the two that were

         23  mentioned.

         24                 When an agency takes the kind of

         25  action that it's taken, that restricts a home
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          2  owner's ownership rights, that agency should use the

          3  greatest care in making a determination. And

          4  unfortunately, the agency did not have at its

          5  disposal the facts that we learned of when we took

          6  possession of the house and we found the original

          7  building plans from the 1920s, the original survey

          8  from 1919 and 1924.

          9                 So, it's submitted respectfully that

         10  when the agency bases its decisions on incorrect

         11  information, it gravely undermines the public's

         12  confidence in the government action, and it should

         13  really be deemed as an arbitrary taking.

         14                 I want to thank the Council for

         15  listening to us.

         16                 MS. MOSLEY: Chairman, one comment? It

         17  will just --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: I want to be

         19  fair. And I'm sorry, I'd like to hear you, but this

         20  way it won't be fair. I have a question, I don't

         21  understand one issue, and maybe somebody from

         22  landmarks can clarify it.

         23                 The Mosley's just raised, said, that

         24  they have information that you did not have when you

         25  made this decision; is that true?

                                                            28

          1  LANDMARKS, SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2                 Diane Jackier, yes, sit down. Push

          3  the button and identify yourself.yes, sit, sit, sit.

          4  Nothing will happen.

          5                 MS. JACKIER: The information that we

          6  have, you know, when we do a historic district, we

          7  go building by building and we look at all the

          8  Department of Building's records, the Department of

          9  Finance records and everything. We also look at a

         10  lot of maps, everything like that.

         11                 For this house, there was a house in

         12  the exact same spot as this one in the 1870s. The

         13  Commission acknowledges that there were changes made

         14  to this house in the 1920s and I can read you just a

         15  little brief, you know, blurb from the building

         16  entry that's in the designation report.

         17                 "The house appears to have been

         18  enlarged and given neo colonial style embellishments

         19  in the early 20th century. When interest in historic

         20  preservation in colonial architecture produced many

         21  sympathetic rehabilitations of older houses and new

         22  house designs based on colonial style precedent. The

         23  house remains largely intact to that period.

         24                 So, the Commission was stating in its

         25  findings for this building that there was a house
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          2  present on this exact site in the 1870s because it

          3  was on the Beers Atlas. There were changes made to

          4  it in the 1920s. That doesn't negate any

          5  significance of the house. You know, there are 31

          6  houses in the district, eight of them, their period

          7  of significance is the 1920s.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: I'm posing this

          9  question to the Mosley's. What information, again,

         10  what information do you believe that the Landmarks

         11  Commission did not have that would have changed

         12  things?

         13                 MS. MOSLEY: The representative from

         14  the Landmarks Commission states that our house dates

         15  to the Beers map. Part of the designation report

         16  there were changes to the house in the 20s. In fact,

         17  if you compare the Beers Map, which I'm sorry, some

         18  of you have, some of you don't, I have more copies,

         19  with a 1919 survey, the home that exists on the

         20  Beers Map is in a completely different location than

         21  a home in 1919, which is also in a completely

         22  different location from the current home. So, what

         23  apparently has happened is the LPC has made a leap

         24  from the past, in the 1873 Beers Map to the present,

         25  just because a home appears on the same spot in the
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          2  yard. But in fact, if you take the middle piece,

          3  which is a 1919 survey, you can see that in fact in

          4  1919 neither our house that exists today, nor the

          5  house that they intended to designate existed, but

          6  the house was destroyed whatever, however, before

          7  1919. In fact, when we brought this to the attention

          8  of the LPC, a staff member came to the house and

          9  said that she could resolve the issue by looking in

         10  the basement and looking in the attic, and

         11  apparently the types of materials that are used are

         12  distinct to the 19th and 20th century. The reason

         13  why we called her is because they rejected our

         14  application based on the 19th century house.

         15                 She actually came, this is about two

         16  weeks ago, she looked in the basement, looked in the

         17  attic, and said what looks like happened is there is

         18  a little bit of the foundation left from the 19th

         19  century house, one or two walls of foundation, but

         20  nothing else.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Okay. When do you

         22  contend that this property was built?

         23                 MS. MOSLEY: By 1924, where we have

         24  this survey that shows --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: But you agree
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          2  that it was built in 1924, not before; is that what

          3  you're saying?

          4                 MS. MOSLEY: I don't know if we agree

          5  because they're saying it wasn't.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: No, I'm asking a

          7  very specific question. I want to know when you

          8  believed your house was built.

          9                 MS. MOSLEY: We believe it was built

         10  in the twenties.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Okay. So that

         12  means that house was built in the twenties.

         13                 Now, Diane Jackier from the Landmarks

         14  Preservation Commission, I'd like to know, given the

         15  experiences that you have with historic districts

         16  other places, assuming for a minute that that's

         17  exactly what happened.

         18                 MS. MOSLEY: Uh-huh.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Assuming for a

         20  minute that that's exactly what happened, when you

         21  do districts, we're not talking about homes, okay?

         22  I'd like to distinguish that because that's what

         23  we're talking about, we're talking about an entire

         24  district. Let's assume for a minute that that is the

         25  case, that it was built in 1924, and you have the
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          2  rest of the district that really this home in and of

          3  itself you would not landmark, but you're doing a

          4  district that you're landmarking, that deserves

          5  landmarking for a variety of reasons which were

          6  mentioned, will you landmark a home like this? Did

          7  you understand my question, even though it was

          8  convoluted?

          9                 MS. JACKIER: I hope I don't answer

         10  the wrong --

         11                 Yes.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: You won't answer

         13  the wrong way. You'll answer the truth. But what I

         14  want to know --

         15                 MS. JACKIER: No. We would absolutely

         16  include, as you know, you know, I've come before you

         17  for several years now and I've said, the hardest

         18  thing the Commission does is determine the

         19  boundaries of the historic district.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Right.

         21                 MS. JACKIER: There are many walks

         22  that are taken by the staff members, by the

         23  Commissioners, by the Chairmen, to determine what

         24  should be included and what shouldn't.

         25                 Because we understand buildings that
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          2  are in the district come under the regulation of the

          3  landmarks, which we understand some people want

          4  that, some people don't. And we look for the

          5  buildings that contribute to the special

          6  architectural sense of place in a district, and this

          7  building definitely contributes to that sense of

          8  place.

          9                 You know, we acknowledge that there

         10  were changes made in the 1920s, but that does not

         11  negate the significance of the building to the

         12  district as a whole, and that was why it was

         13  included.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: So that means

         15  that you're saying, I think, that even if you agreed

         16  to everything that the Mosley's said, the Landmarks

         17  Commission would have included this home?

         18                 MS. JACKIER: Absolutely.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Is that true or

         20  not?

         21                 MS. JACKIER: Absolutely. That's why

         22  it is included in the district, yes.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Okay.

         24                 So, now, do you have anything else

         25  you'd like to say?
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          2                 MS. MOSLEY: Well, it's our feeling

          3  that --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Excuse me for a

          5  minute.

          6                 Yes.

          7                 MS. MOSLEY: It's our believe that an

          8  administrative agency that offers an after the fact

          9  rationalization of an action it takes to restrict a

         10  home-owner's rights, is arbitrary. You know, with

         11  all due respect to the Landmarks representative, she

         12  still doesn't have all the facts, and, again, this

         13  isn't a personal attack on you, but she's saying she

         14  would have included our house anyway, and she still

         15  doesn't have all the information in front of her.

         16                 And it's smacks of being very

         17  arbitrary. I can understand that there is a lot of

         18  community interest in keeping the district, you

         19  know, and they don't want to lose one more house,

         20  but the argument to just suck one more house in

         21  after the fact, it just doesn't seem right. And

         22  after the fact, you know, rationalization like this,

         23  just lead the public to think that an administrative

         24  agency's actions are arbitrary, and the City Council

         25  and the Landmarks Commission should hold themselves
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          2  to a higher standard, that if we're going to take

          3  away a homeowner's rights to use their home as is

          4  otherwise legally appropriate, that we are going to

          5  make sure that we do it with the best information

          6  and with the best reasoning, not on an off-the-cuff

          7  reasoning done when you're called to the mat.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: I appreciate your

          9  comments, and I'm not a judge. I'm not Judge Judy or

         10  Judge Simcha, but the fact is that we at this point

         11  we have to make a decision about a district. And in

         12  fact, whether the Commission should have or could

         13  have done more at this point, in my opinion, is not

         14  the issue. At this point the issue is doing the

         15  right thing. And if based on experiences for many,

         16  many years the City has gone ahead and done

         17  districts, historic districts, and have included

         18  many, many, many, many I'll say it again, times,

         19  homes that don't exactly fit the glove of the rest

         20  of the district, the fact that this home, you know,

         21  maybe they didn't have all the information, but

         22  unless you would have been able to present

         23  information that this hearing that would have

         24  changed that, I don't makes any difference at this

         25  time, but I thank you for your testimony.
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          2                 Do my colleagues have any questions?

          3  Okay, thank you very much.

          4                 Do you want to call the roll on this?

          5                 I would recommend, despite -- I just

          6  want to add, despite the fact that I have very

          7  strong feelings about what you said, because I think

          8  it's very, very difficult for homeowners, the issue

          9  about buying a home, not knowing what's going on and

         10  suddenly being zapped finding out that, I don't

         11  know, something has to be done about that.

         12                 That's it, to me, the unfairness.

         13                 But despite that, I recommend a yes

         14  vote on this item.

         15                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Chair Felder.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: I vote yes on

         17  this item.

         18                 We have one more item.

         19                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         20  Palma.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Yes.

         22                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         23  Oddo.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Yes.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Councilman
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          2  Avella, would you like to make some comments, even

          3  though you're our guest today?

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: Thank you.

          5                 No, I just wanted to comment on

          6  basically remarks, and certainly we always want to

          7  accommodate each and every homeowner as much as

          8  possible, but the one thing I think has to be put

          9  into the record, is that the Mosley's bought their

         10  home in October or November, however, this item was

         11  calendared by the Landmarks Preservation Commission

         12  some time in July, so at that point it really should

         13  have been incumbent upon anybody buying a home in

         14  that area that they were buying into a potential

         15  historic district.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you.

         17                 We're going to do the next item, and

         18  I'd like to call Gregory P. Shaw from the School

         19  Construction Authority and Linda, I can't read it,

         20  Corcoran LU No. 443.

         21                 Whenever you're ready, we're ready.

         22                 MR. SHAW: Good afternoon. Good

         23  afternoon, Council Member Felder and members, thank

         24  you very much. My name is Gregory P. Shaw, and I am

         25  the real estate attorney for the New York City
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          2  School Construction Authority. To my right is Linda

          3  Corcoran, who is Director of Real Estate for the

          4  Division of School Facilities for the New York City

          5  Department of Education.

          6                 I'm very happy today to appear before

          7  you for this very important project. The name of

          8  this project is the Frank Sinatra School of the

          9  Arts, which is located in the Astoria section of

         10  Queens.

         11                 As you may recall, this project was

         12  submitted by the School Construction Authority

         13  through the Honorable Gifford Miller, Speaker of the

         14  City Council, on March 31st, 2005, as well as to the

         15  Mayor, as required by Section 1731 of the Public

         16  Authorities Law.

         17                 The proposed school, the Frank

         18  Sinatra School of the Arts, will be located on tax

         19  block 639, Lot 16, on the south side of 35th Avenue,

         20  between 35th and 36th Streets.

         21                 It is in Region No. 4 for the

         22  Department of Education, and also is located within

         23  Queens Community Board No. 1.

         24                 The project site is approximately

         25  43,000 square feet of City-owned property which is
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          2  currently covered by a master lease with the Kaufman

          3  Area Studio.

          4                 The proposed school calls for

          5  construction of a new approximately 1,000 seat high

          6  school, grades nine through 12 on the site to

          7  accommodate the Frank Sinatra School.

          8                 It is currently leased, as I

          9  indicated, by the Kaufman Area Studios, as part of

         10  this project, a 100 space parking garage will be

         11  constructed beneath the school to replace the

         12  on-site parking currently being used by Kaufman Area

         13  Studios.

         14                 A notice of filing of the site plan

         15  was published in the New York Post and the City

         16  Record on September 8th, 2004. Queens Community

         17  Board No. 1 was notified on September 8th, and was

         18  asked to hold public hearings on the proposed school

         19  plan.

         20                 On October 7, 2004 Community School

         21  Board and the Authority jointly conducted a public

         22  hearing on the proposed project, and to provide the

         23  public with an opportunity for comment.

         24                 Community Board No. 1 subsequently

         25  sent comments recommending in favor of the school.
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          2                 The Authority looks forward to your

          3  favorable consideration of this site selection.

          4                 If you have any questions, please,

          5  we'll be prepared to answer them at this hearing.

          6                 Thank you.

          7                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

          8  Perkins, how do you vote on LU 399 and 433 -- I

          9  mean, 443.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: I'd like to

         11  explain my vote, if you don't mind. I'm just going

         12  to be real quick. I'm going to thank the Chairman

         13  for indulging my schedule. As you know, I'm chairing

         14  a hearing next door, but I did want to come by and

         15  vote aye on both, and thank you very much for your

         16  consideration.

         17                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: The vote stands

         18  at seven in the affirmative, none in the negative

         19  and no abstentions and are referred to the full Land

         20  Use Committee, and that's on LU 399.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Do any of my

         22  colleagues have any questions?

         23                 We're going to vote on it soon. You

         24  have a question, right?

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Yes.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Council Member

          3  Oddo, please.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: The funding for

          5  this particular location, is this part of the $30

          6  million allocated to Queens County, going back to

          7  the days when Peter Vallone was the Speaker and we

          8  divvied up 150 million among five boroughs? Or was

          9  30 million for each borough?

         10                 MS. CORCORAN: This one?

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: This one.

         12                 MS. CORCORAN: I believe it was and

         13  then it was incorporated into the five-year capital

         14  plan that's now in effect for through the Fiscal

         15  Year 2010.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Does anyone else

         17  have any questions?

         18                 Okay, before we vote on this item,

         19  I'd like to -- COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: I'd just like to

         20  --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Council Member

         22  Oddo.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: How come it's

         24  not the Tony Bennett school, or Dean Martin?

         25                 MR. SHAW: Well, in fact, Council
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          2  Member Oddo, that's a good question.

          3                 It is actually Tony Bennett who has

          4  been supportive of the project and it's been

          5  spearheading the naming and the fact of coming for

          6  the school to be the Frank Sinatra School --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: We should all

          8  have a career that long. Dean Martin.

          9                 MR. SHAW: Well, I can't speak to

         10  that, Council member, but you do have two

         11  significant individuals. I mean, Tony Bennett is

         12  supporting it, so...

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: I would say you

         14  certainly have to be dead to get a school named

         15  after you. That's the first, right? The first

         16  requirement?

         17                 MR. SHAW: Yes, it helps.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: I just wanted you

         19  to understand that, that's all.

         20                 So, before we vote on this, I wanted

         21  to, first of all, thank Mr. Shaw and what was it Ms.

         22  Cochran?

         23                 MR. SHAW: Linda Corcoran.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Ms. Corcoran, I'm

         25  sorry. Corcoran from the School Construction
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          2  Authority, who have been very -- and the Board of Ed

          3  who have been very, very helpful, and very

          4  cooperative.

          5                 I just want before the vote to make

          6  something clear on an issue that has nothing to do

          7  with the item before us, but it does have to do with

          8  schools.

          9                 First of all, the Minority Leader, I

         10  think quite eloquently, months and months ago, made

         11  a point about the fact that we were voting on a

         12  five-year plan, and then we were voting on schools

         13  and we had no idea what was going on, and as these

         14  things come up, we find out what's happening, but

         15  the other side of it is not to have the schools and

         16  who doesn't have schools.

         17                 So, I think that still remains. It's

         18  an odd experience that we're voting, you know,

         19  incrementally on things without a general

         20  understanding of what's really happening down the

         21  line. That was a statement.

         22                 Second of all, I want to thank both

         23  of you for an item that I've been working on in my

         24  district. One of the public schools in my district

         25  has the pleasure of having, or had the pleasure, I
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          2  should say, of having part of the property repaved

          3  for a 20-car parking lot for its teachers, which I

          4  think is unbelievable, that only teachers in my

          5  district can have a parking lot on public school

          6  property near the playground where the children

          7  play.

          8                 Twenty cars for teachers. The City

          9  spent money, I don't know whose money, I know

         10  there's no money to fix the toilets but there was

         11  money to repave an entire area so that 20 staff

         12  members at a public school should have a place to

         13  park their cars on City property, which is

         14  outrageous. Outrageous. And it's unconscionable,

         15  right near children's playgrounds. Bizarre. I don't

         16  know why they're writing about Jennings when they

         17  can be writing about this parking lot. It's a lot

         18  more exciting.

         19                 So, all I want to say is that despite

         20  the fact that I have been educated that we do not

         21  have the power in this Committee to turn, I should

         22  say, we do have the power to turn down a vote on a

         23  school construction item, but in order to go down

         24  two-thirds of the City Council would have to turn it

         25  down. Is that the same about landmarks? Or not true?
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          2                 I think Landmarks is different. I

          3  think Landmarks, if we vote it down, it's down in

          4  the Subcommittee.

          5                 This is different. It means that we'd

          6  have to get two-thirds of the City Council to turn

          7  it down so that the only power we have really is to

          8  turn it down and then try to convince two-thirds of

          9  the Council to turn it down, which is, you know, you

         10  have to have a compelling argument.

         11                 But we do have the power to have a

         12  hearing, and I intend to have a hearing at this

         13  Committee to figure out -- you know, I'm going to

         14  use the School Construction Authority as the loop,

         15  and in something that's done with the Board of Ed,

         16  and if I have to do it with Eva Moskowitz, I'll do a

         17  Committee hearing with Eva Moskowitz to figure out

         18  how the School Construction Authority and the Board

         19  of Ed, have allowed this to take place in this day

         20  and age, and I think it's going to be a very

         21  exciting meeting, a very, very exciting meeting.

         22                 I look forward to bringing in

         23  photographs of the parking lot, and I'm going to try

         24  to get videotapes of the teachers smiling going into

         25  their cars in the parking lot, getting out, and
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          2  they're all happy in my district. But this is

          3  something that's not going to go on. And again, this

          4  is not a reflection. I heard the Mosley's say to

          5  Diane Jackier something like it's not a reflection

          6  on her. This is not a reflection on either one of

          7  you, but I can tell you that I'm out to roast

          8  somebody because it's unconscionable certainly that

          9  cars, teachers driving cars should have their cars

         10  near children and risk their safety. So at least I

         11  want it on the public record so those that are

         12  listening on Channel 74 in the middle of the night

         13  will understand that at least I said something, even

         14  though I did nothing about it yet, we will have a

         15  hearing.

         16                 I thank you, and I vote yes on this

         17  item as well.

         18                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Chair Felder.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Yes.

         20                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         21  Palma.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Aye.

         23                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         24  Oddo.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Yes.
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          2                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: The vote stands

          3  at seven in the affirmative, none in the negative,

          4  no abstentions and refers to the full Land Use

          5  Committee.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you.

          7                 (Hearing concluded at 12:10 p.m.)
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